
0                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
 
 
 
 
  00 

 
 

AGENDA-AMENDED 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 17, 2020 
 
 
ROLL CALL     7:00 P.M. 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
PRESENTATION 
 
MAYOR’S PRESENTATION OF CITY OF PERU GOOD NEIGHBOR RECOGNITION 
 
2020 CITY OF PERU PAVEMENT SURFACE EVALUATION & RATING REPORT – CITY ENGINEER, ERIC 
CARLS, P.E. 
 
 
MINUTES 
 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 5, 2020 
 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
TREASURER’S REPORT FOR JANUARY 2020 
 
CITY CLERK’S REPORT OF CASH RECEIVED FOR JANUARY 2020 
 
 
ACTIVITY REPORTS 
 
PERU POLICE DEPARTMENT CALANDER YEAR 2019 ANNUAL REPORT 
 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS      ALDERMEN 

 
1. FINANCE AND SAFETY SERVICES   Chairman Radtke, Sapienza,  

       Payton, Buffo & Mayor Harl 
  



 DISBURSEMENTS for February 19, 2020 
 

Motion to execute Letter of Engagement for actuarial services for the City of Peru Fire and 
Police Pension Funds 
 
Motion to execute Letter of Engagement for 2020 actuarial services for GASB 75 
 
Motion to approve $600 donation to the Peru Veterans Memorial Group 
 
 

2. PUBLIC SERVICES     Chairman Waldorf, Ferrari,  
       Lukosus, Ballard & Mayor Harl 

 
RESOLUTION FOR THE EWWTP GENERATOR 
 
Motion to authorize the City Engineer to seek bids for the EWWTP generator project 
 
Discuss funding for Sewer Separation Area 1 Phase 5 project, Sewer Separation Area 1 Phase 6 
project and Sewer Separation Area 5 Phase 1 project (no private money will be included in the 
funding) 
 

 
REPORT OF CITY ATTORNEY/ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 
MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PETITION OF GC HOUSING DEVELOPMENT LLC AND CRANE 
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LLC CONCERNING PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1810 4TH STREET AND 710 
PEORIA STREET, PERU, IL  
 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF A    TEMPORARY    CONSTRUCTION     EASEMENT 
FROM BRIAN A. BURCH AND DEBORAH R. BURCH 
(1319 4TH STREET, PERU, IL) 
 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF A UTILITY EASEMENT FROM RYAN N. MARGIS (813 
PLUM STREET, PERU, IL) 
 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF A UTILITY EASEMENT FROM KATHLEEN F. 
KOEHLER AND RANDY R. KOEHLER (1302 5TH STREET, PERU, IL) 
 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF A TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT FROM 
LANCE SIEBERT (823 PLUM STREET, PERU, IL) 
 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF A UTILITY EASEMENT FROM JAY R. STACHOWIAK 
AND TINA WRIGHT (1300 5TH STREET, PERU, IL) 
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS     
 
 
PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 



ITEM NO. 1  Communication from Andrew Lamps, Ashley Lamps and Sharon Lamps seeking variances, 
special use and waivers for property with pin number 17-04-321-005 

 
ITEM NO. 2 Communication from Bernabei, Balestri & Fiocchi on behalf of GC Housing Development LLC 

submitting amended petition for waviers, variances, rezoning and approval of Preliminary 
Development Plan for properties located at 1810 4th Street and 710 Peoria Street, Peru, IL 

 
ITEM NO. 3 Communication from Carolyn Moore informing the City of Peru of their non-partisan effort to 

promote voter’s registration and getting more people to the poles through a promotional decal 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT   
 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING FEBRUARY 5, 2020 
   

 1 

A regular meeting of the Peru City Council was called to order by Mayor Scott J. Harl in the Peru City Council 
Chambers on Wednesday, February 5, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. 
 
City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard 
and Buffo present; Mayor Harl present. 
 
All joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Peru Attorney Julie Ajster addressed the council to discuss the motion on the agenda regarding the engagement letter 
with Klein Thorpe and Jenkins (KTJ) for special counsel and legal services relating to FOIA. Ms. Ajster stated it is 
her opinion the motion is in response to her recent FOIA requests to the city. Ms. Ajster stated the letter is dated 
January 29, 2020; however, she has been receiving letters from KTJ since December 23, 2019. Ms. Ajster stated 
KTJ is already responding to FOIA request on behalf of the city and asked if the city is going to be billed for the last 
nine letters they sent in the last month and if so, they would predate the engagement letter if you were to approve it 
would the last nine be covered under the engagement letter or who would be responsible for paying those legal 
services. Ms. Ajster stated with regard to retaining KTJ, the public is entitled to the information; the law, 
specifically FOIA, allows the public to get certain documents from the city. Ms. Ajster stated Police Chief Doug 
Bernabei and the city have been complaining about FOIA requests for years, publishing articles in the paper, 
complaining people send to many FOIA requests, wasting our time. Ms. Ajster stated her position is that a pubic 
body works for the pubic and the public is entitled to most everything but conceded there are some things the public 
cannot have due to certain exemptions to FOIA. Ms. Ajster stated that if the city is not hiding anything, then give 
her the documents. Ms. Ajster stated she sends FOIA requests not just to the City of Peru but to other cities, but 
never had the problem getting responses like she does in Peru. Ms. Ajster stated she don’t have an issue getting 
requests from any part of the city besides the police department. Ms. Ajster stated she can send a request to the 
clerk’s office and get a response withing the 5 business or get a response the documents can be found online. Ms. 
Ajster asked if the clerks office can provide the documents and place them online within the 5 days, why is there 
such a problem with the police department that either this is always and extension and now they want special 
counsel to respond to FOIA requests and believes there has to be some reason for it and the question is why now, in 
response to these FOIA’s because she has sent FOIA’s to the police department in the past years. Ms. Ajster stated 
that even while they are trying to bring in KTJ to respond to these, certain FOIA’s they are responding to with out 
the need of special counsel. Ms. Ajster asked why it is necessary now and doesn’t feel it is necessary because she 
has requested like documents in the past and has never been an issue. Ms. Ajster stated all of the FOIA’s KTJ are 
responding to are all related to the police department. Ms. Ajster stated the first FOIA submitted to KTJ was in 
response to RFP’s (Request for Proposals) regarding proposed police station and stated the response she got was 
now the documents were available online. Ms. Ajster stated she went online and they were not there, went back and 
send the same FOIA request and got the same response they were online and they were put online. Ms. Ajster stated 
she didn’t hear back from the city for a month and until she sent a FOIA request asking for policies and procedures 
of the police department in regards to discipline and also asked for all officers suspended for past 24 months because 
at that time she was made aware of the fact four officers were currently on suspension. Ms. Ajster stated she 
believes that seems excessive and wanted a summary as to who has been suspended for past two years to make sure 
the discipline is proper. Ms. Ajster stated she believes that’s the reason her request is being denied but has in the past 
received law enforcement files, specifically with discipline not just from the Peru Police Department but from 
LaSalle Police Department, Oglesby Police Department and Spring Valley Police Department, along with Chief 
Bernabei’s file from Florida, so he knows she is entitled to it. Mayor Harl interjected the public comment was going 
to long and stated Chief Bernabei had some things to say as well.  
 
Chief Bernabei addressed the council stating he wanted to respond to a few of those comments even though he 
doesn’t normally respond to Ms. Ajster due to their adversary relationship which exists since he testified against her 
in the IL Supreme Court. Chief Bernabei stated that what Ms. Ajster told the council lacks much facts. Chief 
Bernabei stated Ms. Ajster had not just FOIA’d the police department but sent two FOIA requests to the engineering 
department for records and was pointed to the website for things that were a matter of public record and other items 
that were denied because of copyright type items.  
 
Chief Bernabei stated she then asked the clerks office for invoices and was pointed to the website under proposed 
police station project.  



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING FEBRUARY 5, 2020 
   

 2 

Chief Bernabei stated that on January 20, 2020, Ms. Ajster sent a FOIA request to the clerk’s office for resumes, 
applications, etc. for any individual who applied for the position of Director of Parks, Recreation and Special 
Events. Chief Bernabei stated that request was forwarded by the City Clerk’s Office and the city FOIA Officer to 
KTJ. Chief Bernabei stated that under Illinois law, as we understand it now, applicants for jobs are not public 
documents and will be denied. Chief Bernabei stated the successful candidate’s information would be subject to 
public record. Chief Bernabei stated our FOIA Officer in the City Clerk’s Office is not going to respond to FOIA’s 
as a non-trained attorney in high liability type situations. Chief Bernabei stated we have approximately thirty people 
applying for jobs that are employed in other locations in the Illinois Valley and they know they have the ability to 
have confidential interviews with potential public employee, so the person gets hired, that becomes public 
information but the other twenty-nine people who applied is not public information because it would have a chilling 
affect on anyone every wanting to apply for public job and if she doesn’t know that, she should.  
 
Chief Bernabei stated that on January 20, 2020, Ms. Ajster asked for resumes, applications, letters, documents for 
part-time police officer and any emails between the mayor and chief of police. Chief Bernabei stated we did have an 
application from a part-time officer who was hired as a part-time member of the police department.  
 
Chief Bernabei stated on January 22, 2020 Ms. Ajster asked for the police collective bargaining agreement and had 
no problem releasing, along with the police policy manual and handbook. Chief Bernabei stated there is an 
exemption under IL law that states if we wish to do that there are certain policies we would not release, but we have 
chosen to be transparent and release the entire procedural journal and place it on the website. Chief Bernabei stated 
some departments and communities refused to do that because of safety issues, so if you want to see how the police 
department handles a whole host of things, just go to city’s website.  
 
Chief Bernabei stated that on January 23, 2020 Ms. Ajster asked for a list of Board of Fire and Police 
Commissioners along with policies and procedures and stated yes, we should have that on the website and we did 
not, and it was immediately put on. Chief Bernabei thanked Ms. Ajster for making that request as it hadn’t occurred 
to any one to put it on the website; she asked for it and we happily obliged and was handled by FOIA Officer 
Stephanie Piscia.  
 
Chief Bernabei stated that on January 24, 2020 Ms. Ajster asked for all police employees, that’s thirty-five 
employees including crossing guards, patrol officers, administrative assistants, etc. Chief Bernabei stated Ms. Ajster 
asked for every single work schedule form January 2018 to present. Chief Bernabei stated she asked for all time 
sheets, every piece of evidence when every one of our employees logged in and logged out. Chief Bernabei stated 
fulfilling the request would produce approximately 1900 pages and is 52 files the police department administrative 
assistant would have to gather and provide, therefore referred to KTJ.  
 
Chief Bernabei stated that on January 29, 2020 Ms. Ajster requested entire employment file including all 
disciplinary records of a former peru police officer that was denied on February 4, 2020 because he indicated she 
made the very request for the same officer and was provided the information in 2017 and now asking for the same 
information again. 
 
Chief Bernabei stated that along with CBA a list of all officers suspended in last two years with a date, length of 
suspension and reason. Chief Bernabei stated the records are a matter of public record to an extent, however, under 
the IL courts and IL Personnel Review Act, any municipality that has disciplinary and personnel records on a police 
officer has an absolute obligation to comply with FOIA laws but at the same time comply with the IL Personnel 
Review Act. Chief Bernabei stated there are sanctions that can be placed against a municipality if released 
information, inadvertently, intentionally or otherwise so it is high stakes stuff. 
 
Chief Bernabei stated on January 29, 2020 Ms. Ajster sent a FOIA request based on the fact someone told her he has 
all kinds of surveillance equipment at his home. Chief Bernabei stated that FOIA was answered by Administrative 
Assistant and FOIA Officer Michelle Wagner because it was ludicrous that he would have any type of equipment at 
his home whatsoever. Chief Bernabei stated that any surveillance equipment is in the power, control and custody of 
special investigations unit.  
 
Chief Bernabei reiterated that some of the requests involve people who are trying for jobs in the City of Peru and 
their information is not subject, according to our attorney not subject to public consumption. 
 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING FEBRUARY 5, 2020 
   

 3 

Chief Bernabei also stated that asking for disciplinary records against what he would argue the finest members of 
any law enforcement agency anywhere. 
 
Ms. Ajster (unadudible). Chief Bernabei stated “I am talking”. Ms. Ajster could be heard asking Chief Bernabei why 
you keep suspending them for everything. Chief Bernabei stated it was none of her business. Ms. Ajster stated it is 
because he is a tyrant; when you have 15% of your police force suspended at one time, what is going wrong? Mayor 
Harl interjected and stated we are not in a debate here and had her chance at the podium. Mayor Harl stated that now 
Chief Bernabei is responding. 
 
Chief Bernabei stated that in any event, the FOIA officers will handle and continue to handle routine FOIA matters 
that do not expose them or the city to unnecessary risk or liability of releasing information that they should not 
release. Chief Bernabei stated we are committed 100% to be transparent and will provide information as required by 
law. Chief Bernabei stated our FOIA Officers are not attorneys, they are not experts in the FOIA law, they have 
basic training as required by law. Chief Bernabei stated he credits FOIA Officers Stephanie Piscia and Michelle 
Wagner that when they get a FOIA request they are not personally comfortable with not responding to, they go to 
their department head and say the request is beyond me and want nothing to do with it. Chief Bernabei stated some 
information is high-risk business and is not going to expose the city or themselves to liability.  
 
Chief Bernabei stated that yes, the engagement letter is on the agenda and yes, him and City Engineer Eric Carls 
engaged KTJ in December of last year regarding the information Ms. Ajster requested regarding the proposed police 
department that was clearly not public information. Chief Bernabei stated that since Ms. Ajster filed all of these 
FOIA’s regarding personnel records, disciplinary records, former police officers, current police officers, he retained 
KTJ. Chief Bernabei stated that as department heads we are permitted to retain attorneys; they are budgeted line 
items, approved by the city council well in advance, for legal expenses. Chief Bernabei stated that in conversation 
with KTJ, when we have this voluminous amount of requests from Ms. Ajster in an adversarial relationship with the 
city, we said is it appropriate, is it necessary if this will be more of an ongoing thing. Chief Bernabei stated KTJ 
advised him it is not legally required, and we do not have to obtain a letter of engagement, but if it is in your budget, 
put it on your agenda and be transparent. Chief Bernabei stated that KTJ attorney Mike Juresik is arguably one of 
the most well known and an expert in FOIA laws, he is a municipal attorney and have something that local attorneys 
do not have. Chief Bernabei stated KTJ represents many communities that handle this exact type of FOIA’s. Chief 
Bernabei stated they have redacting software where they can put in the reports or documents and computer will do 
the bulk of the work at a much more rapid pace then certainly a local attorney can do. Chief Bernabei stressed the 
fact it’s not a reflection on any local municipal attorneys, the Schweickert’s are great, the Andreoni’s are great, the 
McPhedran’s are great; they are all great lawyers but I would suggest if you have a hernia, you don’t go to a general 
practitioner you go to a surgeon and when we have high liability things, we go to the experts. 
 
PRESENTATION 
 
Mayor Harl presented introduced Henry and Deb Hackman to the council. Mr. Hackman, a State Farm agent with a 
downtown office, is retiring after 40 years in business. Mayor Scott Harl recognized Hackman as a “Peru Good 
Neighbor” and wished him a happy retirement. Mr. Hackman thanked Mayor Harl and stated it had been a good run 
and looked forward to the next chapter. 
 
MINUTES 
 
Mayor Harl presented the minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 20, 2020. Alderman Waldorf made a motion 
that the minutes be received and placed on file. Alderman Lukosus seconded the motion; motion carried. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
Mayor Harl presented the Sales, Home Rule, Use and Telecommunication Tax Receipts for October 2019. 
Alderman Radtke made a motion the report be received and placed on file. Alderman Buffo seconded the motion; 
motion carried. 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING FEBRUARY 5, 2020 
   

 4 

ACTIVITY REPORTS 
 
Mayor Harl presented the Police Department Monthly Report; Peru Volunteer Ambulance Service Inc. Activity 
Summary for December 2019 and Peru Volunteer Ambulance Service Inc. Activity Summary for Year 2019. 
Alderman Waldorf made a motion the report be received and placed on file. Alderman Payton seconded the motion; 
motion carried. 
 
FINANCE AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 
 
Alderman Buffo presented the following disbursements for payment on February 5, 2020: 
 

FUND NAME     TOTAL EXPENSES 
 
 General Fund $1,766,538.62 

 Insurance Fund 100,237.68 

 Utility Fund 644,522.01 

 Airport Fund 3,073.00 

 Total $2,534,371.37 

Alderman Buffo made a motion that the report be received, placed on file and the bills be paid in the usual manner.  
Alderman Radtke seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, 
Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 
Alderman Payton made a motion to reinvest the following Utility and General Funds: 
 

$150,000 at 1.90% in Wells Fargo Bank for 36 months 
$250,000 at 1.90% in Wells Fargo North America for 36 months 
$50,000 at 1.70% in BMW Bank of North America for 30 months 
$50,000 at 1.60% in Veritex Community Bank for 9 months 
$50,000 at 1.65% in Bank of Baroda for 12 months 
$50,000 at 1.60% in Haven Savings Bank for 7 months 

Alderman Ferrari seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, 
Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 
Alderman Sapienza made a motion to approve $150.00 donation to the 2020 LaSalle Peru Founders Patrol 
Breakfast. Alderman Radtke seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, 
Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
  
PUBLIC SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
Alderman Ballard made a motion to approve Engineering Services Agreement with Chamlin & Associates for the 
design and inspection of the Area 5 Phase 1 IEPA mandated sewer separation project. City Engineer Eric Carls 
stated the project location would be East of Route 251-7th Street Monks Avenue Area. Alderman Ferrari seconded 
the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, 
Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 
Alderman Lukosus made a motion to seek bids for bucket truck for Electric Department. Alderman Waldorf 
seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, 
Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 
REPORT OF CITY ATTORNEY/ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 
Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented the minutes of Planning/Zoning Commission hearing held on 
January 29, 2020 concerning the petition of MVAH Holding LLC for property located east of North Peoria Street 
and North of Midtown Road, Peru, IL. Alderman Lukosus made a motion the minutes be received, placed on file 
and concur with the recommendation. Alderman Radtke seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING FEBRUARY 5, 2020 
   

 5 

roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion 
carried. 
 
Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented the minutes of Planning/Zoning Commission hearing held on 
January 29, 2020 concerning the petition of Robert Grivetti concerning property located at 2702 May Road, Peru, 
IL. Alderman Ballard made a motion the minutes be received, placed on file and concur with the recommendation. 
Alderman Waldorf seconded the motion; motion carried. 
 
Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented a proposed ordinance entitled: 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 6454 
 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING SPECIAL USES AS SOUGHT BY THE PETITION OF ROBERT 
GRIVETTI FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2702 MAY ROAD, PERU, IL 
 
Alderman Buffo made a motion the ordinance be adopted as written and read. Alderman Ballard seconded the 
motion. Finance Officer Justin Miller stated the ordinance combines all separate policies (credit card policy, travel 
expenses, bidding policy and general purchases). City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, 
Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 
City Clerk Dave Bartley presented a proposed resolution entitled: 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-01 
 
RESOLUTION FOR MAINTENANCE OF STREETS AND HIGHWAYS BY MUNICIPALITY UNDER 
THE ILLINOIS HIGHWAY CODE (Supplemental Resolution-for expenditure of MFT funds for the N. Peoria 
Street roadway improvements) 
 
Alderman Waldorf made a motion the resolution be adopted as written and read. Alderman Sapienza seconded the 
motion. City Engineer Eric Carls noted the $1.5 million in MFT funds total. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll 
with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Alderman Waldorf made a motion to approve an Engagement Letter with Klein, Thorpe and Jenkins, LTD. For 
Special Counsel Legal Services relating to FOIA matters. Alderman Sapienza seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave 
Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo 
voting aye; motion carried. 
 
PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Clerk Bartley presented a communication from Terri Chamberlain requesting permission to use Baker Lake/shelter 
for a small wedding ceremony of Saturday, June 27th. Alderman Ferrari made a motion the communication be 
received, placed on file and permission granted. Alderman Ballard seconded the motion; motion carried. 
 
Clerk Bartley presented the Peru Veterans Memorial Group Annual Report. Alderman Radtke made a motion the 
report be received and placed on file. Alderman Waldorf seconded the motion; motion carried. 
 
Clerk Bartley presented a communication from Jacey Etscheid requesting division of real estate, waiver of 
requirements of subdivision ordinance and variances for property located at 2601 5th Street and 914 Herbert Street. 
Corporate Counsel informed the council he is representing Ms. Etscheid, therefore special counsel will need to be 
appointed to represent the city. Alderman Ferrari made a motion the communication be received, placed on file, 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING FEBRUARY 5, 2020 
   

 6 

referred to Planning/Zoning Commission and appoint special counsel. Alderman Waldorf seconded the motion; 
motion carried. 
 
Mayor Harl read a communication from Classic Pageants, Inc. requesting the city to attend and send a representative 
to represent the city at the Mrs. Illinois/America Pageant Super Bowl 2020. Alderman Waldorf made a motion the 
communication be received and placed on file. Alderman Payton seconded the motion; motion carried. 
   
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Ms. Ajster addressed the council in regard to Chief Bernabei’s comments in the opening public comment. Ms. Ajster 
stated that FOIA requests to engineering department for schematics regarding the new proposed police station, that 
the request was not sent directly to the engineering department, it was sent to the clerk’s office. Ms. Ajster stated she 
only ever sends requests to the clerk’s office to Stephanie Piscia or to Mr. Bartley directly or to Michelle Wagner at 
the police department. Ms. Ajster stated it appears that now all the FOIA requests are going through Chief Bernabei 
and stated she wasn’t sure if it is due to the clerk’s office accidentally giving out the schematics that said Bernabei 
Boulevard for the proposed police department. Ms. Ajster stated that it appeasers that all FOIA’s are going through 
Chief Bernabei now rather than the appropriate FOIA officers which are designated with the States Attorney 
Generals office to who the FOIA officer is trained and does have a certificate of training in FOIA. 
 
Ms. Ajster stated in regard to retaining KTJ to respond to FOIA requests, specifically with regard to police officers, 
she stated this is probably the only time she will agree with Chief Bernabei on anything other than the fact that our 
officers are fantastic, however she thinks they deserve better than Chief Bernabei. Ms. Ajster stated that is the reason 
for her FOIA requests and currently there is a controlling letter from the Attorney General’s Office which was sent 
to Chief Bernabei two days before the city retained KTJ. Ms. Ajster stated the letter refers to former LaSalle police 
officer James Strand to which she requested his employment files years ago and the Attorney General’s Office 
ordered the City of LaSalle to turn over the documents. Ms. Ajster stated she sent Chief Bernabei that letter as an 
opinion and in regard to the IL Personnel Review Act she is aware of that because she sent it to you as well two days 
before the city retained KTJ and advised Chief Bernabei to the specific portion of the act where it states the act no 
way diminishes FOIA. 
 
Ms. Ajster spoke regarding former Peru Police Commander Shawn Anderson, stating Chief Bernabei said she asked 
for his entre personnel file years ago. Ms. Ajster stated she did not ask for his file but for his “clear and present 
danger”, due to an hour long standoff with a fire arm, that should have been sent to the IL State Police, which he Ms. 
Ajster stated he did not send. Ms. Ajster stated she requested the entire personnel file last week to make sure the 
discipline he received in response to striking his wife, operating his vehicle drunk to his house and then having an 
hour long stand off with police was commiserate with the discipline the officers are receiving now for being tarty or 
whatever else they are being disciplined for and that is what she is trying to determine. 
 
Ms. Ajster responded to her request regarding timesheets. Ms. Ajster stated the request may be voluminous and a 
daunting task but stated if Chief Bernabei is going to discipline officers for being tardy or missing days from work, 
she wants to make sure all the officers who miss time are all being disciplined accordingly and not some officers and 
not others, which is the reason for the request. 
 
Ms. Ajster responded to her request for the police department policies and procedures. Ms. Ajster stated she sent a 
FOIA for the policies and procedures, handbook and the list of officers suspended for past 24 months. Ms. Ajster 
stated that prior to any FOIA request, she checks the website first and she don’t like to FOIA documents 
unnecessarily because she don’t necessarily like the people she is requesting documents from know what she has or 
what she is looking into. Ms. Ajster stated that when she sent the FOIA, there were no policies and procedures 
online for the police department and if there were, perhaps KTJ, your fancy Chicago firm, where your attorneys 
walk on water, would have responded that way to my request, but instead they asked for a 5 day extension because 
the documents requested are not kept at this location or they are voluminous or they require redacting, so that is not 
necessarily accurate either. 
 
Ms. Ajster stated lastly, Chief Bernabei mentioned our adversarial relationship to which she agrees, however, she 
stated Chief Bernabei did not testify against her at the IL Supreme Court, it was the ARDC and if he would like, she 
would make the transcripts made public so people can see how Chief Bernabei testified, stating it would not be good 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING FEBRUARY 5, 2020 
   

 7 

for him. Ms. Ajster stated the next day Chief Bernabei told the police officers of the City of Peru that if they are 
friends with her, they are his enemy.  
 
Chief Bernabei interjected (inaudible). Ms. Ajster told Chief Bernabei to be quiet. 
 
Mayor Harl informed Ms. Ajster she is finished with her public comment and let her go on longer than public 
comment is normally allowed. Ms. Ajster asked Mayor Harl to clarify Public Comment. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
Alderman Lukosus asked for a motion to go into closed session. Alderman Waldorf made a motion to into closed 
session for meetings to consider the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal 
of specific employees, including the public body’s legal counsel, or to hear testimony on a complaint lodged against 
an employee to determine its validity. Alderman Sapienza seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the 
roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion 
carried. 
 
Closed session began at 7:56 p.m.; ended at 8:30 p.m. 
 
Alderman Radtke made a motion to reopen the meeting. Alderman Ferrari seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave 
Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo 
present; Mayor Harl present. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Alderman Waldorf made a motion that the meeting be adjourned. Alderman Sapienza seconded the motion and 
motion carried. Meeting adjourned 8:35 p.m.  
 
 



JANUARY 2020 
JACKSON POWELL, TREASURER 

TREASURER'S REPORT 



Treasurer's Monthly Report Index 

Line Item Description 	 Page 

Combined Operating Account Status Report 	 6 
Community Development & Assistance Grant Trust Fund 	2 
Concentration of Deposits Report 	 5 
Electric Light Enterprise Fund - Bond Accounts 	 3 
Electric Light Enterprise Fund - Operating Accounts 	 3 
Firefighters Pension Trust Fund Report of Investments 	6 
Fund Balances By Type 	 4 
Fund Investments 	 7-9 
Garbage Fund 	 2 
GASB 54 Balance Use Definition Totals 	 4 
General Fund Operating Accounts 	 1 
Illinois Valley Regional Airport Enterprise Fund 	 4 
Infrastructure Home Rule Sales Tax Account 	 1 
Insurance Fund 	 2 
Landfill Enterprise Fund 	 4 
Motel Tax Account 	 1 
Motor Fuel Tax Fund 	 2 
Parkside Bond Account 	 1 
Past Elected Officials Account 	 1 
Peru Celebration Trust Account 	 1 
Peru Municipal Pool Account 	 1 
Peru Police Drug Enforcement, Impound & Equipment Func 	2 
Police Pension Trust Fund Report of Assets 	 6 
Recreation Fund 	 2 
TIF 1,2 & 3 Funds 	 2 
Veteran's Memorial Account 	 1 
Waterworks & Sewerage System Enterprise Fund 	 4 



Treasurer's Monthly Report January 31,2019 

Previous Period 
Fund Description 

Balance 
Financial Institution - Account # 

Receipts Disbursements 
Interest 
Earned 

End of Period 
Balance 

Balance Use 
Definition 

Cumulative 
Unassigned Fund 

Balance 

Cumulative Fund 
Balance 

General Fund Operating Checking Account 	 93,167.58 $ 	189,040.98 	$ (264,982.82) $ 	1.70 $ 	17,227.44 Unassigned $17,227.44 17,227.44 
Hometown National Bank - Acct #105853 
Illinois Fund - Mercantile Bank - Acct #7139166001 	 16,545.86 $ 	1,074,839.15 	$ (523,955.13) $ 	818.65 $ 	568,248.53 Unassigned 585,475.97 585,475.97 

General Fund Automatic Clearing House Account 	$ 	36,664.50 $ 	638,037.51 	$ (662,066.72) $ 	0.90 $ 	12,636.19 Unassigned 598,112.16 598,112.16 
Heartland Acct #6506402 
General Fund Operating Reserve Transaction Accounts 
Illinois Fund - Mercantile Bank - Acct #4348664122 	 889,494.15 $ 	554,920.11 	$ (275,000.00) $ 	1,280.89 $ 	1,170,695.15 Unassigned 1,768,807.31 1,768,807.31 
Heartland Acct #5840023088 	 - $ 	8,405.48 	$ (8,405.48) $ 	- $ Unassigned 1,768,807.31 1,768,807.31 

General Fund Operating Reserve CDs 	 2,571,579.03 $ - $ 	1,849.37 $ 	2,573,428.40 Unassigned 4,342,235.71 4,342,235.71 

Farm Cash Rent Account - Hertz Management 
Heartland - Acct #2637 	 621.83 $ 0.06 $ 	621.89 Unassigned 4,342,857.60 4,342,857.60 

Infrastructure Home Rule Sales Tax Account 
Illinois Fund - Mercantile Bank - Acct #4348664122 	$ 	3,155,122.19 $ 	176,561.07 	$ $ 	4,543.96 $ 	3,336,227.22 Restricted 4,342,857.60 7,679,084.82 

GF/Motel Tax Account 	 729,903.78 $ 	23,984.32 	$ $ 	206.90 $ 	754,095.00 Committed 4,342,857.60 8,433,179.82 
Peru Federal Account #161314228/#162310209 

Parkside Bond Obligation Reserve 	 1,481,792.85 $ 	130,046.43 	$ $ 	2,133.99 $ 	1,613,973.27 Restricted 4,342,857.60 10,047,153.09 
Illinois Fund - Mercantile Bank - Acct #4348664122 

General Fund Police Bldg Reserve 	 684,878.82 $ 	20,833.00 	$ $ 	986.29 $ 	706,698.11 Restricted 4,342,857.60 10,753,851.20 
Illinois Fund - Mercantile Bank - Acct #4348664122 

Past Elected Officials Account 	 6,785.00 $ 0.86 $ 	6,785.86 Restricted 4,342,857.60 10,760,637.06 
Peru Federal Savings - Acct #1002354591 

Peru Celebration Trust Account 	 41,312.53 $ 	100.00 	$ 363.92 $ 	41,776.45 Restricted 4,342,857.60 10,802,413.51 
Edward Jones - Acct #6081575315 

Peru Municipal Pool Account 	 36,645.01 $ 36,645.01 Assigned 4,342,857.60 10,839,058.52 
Hometown National Bank - Acct #110741 
Peru Municipal Pool Acct 	 93,760.66 $ $ $ 	93,760.66 Assigned 4,342,857.60 10,932,819.18 
Certificate of Deposit Investments 

Veteran's Park Memorial Account 	 11,822.14 $ - $ $ 	11,822.14 Restricted 4,342,857.60 10,944,641.32 
Hometown National Bank - Acct #105853 

Reserve-Copeland Donation 	 108,249.20 $ $ 	155.89 $ 	108,405.09 Restricted 4,342,857.60 11,053,046.41 

1

Cemetery 
Illinois Fund - Mercantile Bank - Acct #4348664122 



Treasurer's Monthly Report 	 January 31,2019 

Fund Description 
Financial Institution - Account # 

Previous Period 
Balance 

Receipts 	Disbursements Interest 
Earned End of Period Balance 

Balance Use 
Definition 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Insurance Fund 
Heartland - HRNFSA - Acct #6506569 $444,913.65 $10,587.37 ($143,485.78) $17.27 $312,032.51 Committed 

Garbage Fund $36,573.83 $51,240.63 ($65,805.03) $10.37 $22,019.80 Committed 
Peru Federal Account #1613142284162310209 

Motor Fuel Tax Fund $799,505.16 $45,191.78 $0.00 $631.19 $845,328.13 Restricted 
Hometown National Bank - Acct #72660101 

Peru Police Drug Enforcement, Impound & Equipment Fund 
Peru Federal Account Acct #161317890 $141,335.83 $419.00 ($2,000.00) $48.40 $139,803.23 Restricted 
Midland States Bank Acct #5405000027 $78,775.52 $5,046.73 ($1,929.51) $4.65 $81,897.39 Restricted 
Total Peru Police Drug Enforcement, Impound $221,700.62 
& Equipment Fund 

Recreation Fund 
Heartland Acct #6506399 $50,946.59 $0.00 ($3.88) $1.38 $50,944.09 Committed 

TIF 1 Fund 
Heartland Acct #6506410 $5,696.28 $0.00 $0.00 $0.42 $5,696.70 Committed 
TIF 2 Fund - Peru Industrial 
Heartland Acct #6506410 $389,582.52 $0.00 $0.00 $28.41 $389,610.93 Committed 
TIF 3 Fund - North Peru 
Heartland Acct #6506410 $23,569.19 $0.00 $0.00 $1.72 $23,570.91 Committed 

TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS $1,870,903.69 

TRUST FUNDS 
Community Development Assistance Grant Trust Fund $81,820.10 $0.00 $0.00 $2.95 $81,823.05 Restricted 
Heartland - Acct #3018792 

TOTAL TRUST FUNDS (Excludes Pension $81,823.05 
Trust Funds) 

2 



Treasurer's Monthly Report 	 January 31, 2019 

Fund Description 
Financial Institution - Account # 

Previous Period 
Balance 

Receipts Disbursements 
Interest 
Earned 

End of Period Balance 
Balance Use 

Definition 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Electric Light Enterprise Fund Operating Accounts 
Operating Checking Account 	 $251,859.51 
Heartland - Acct #6506429 

$2,530,328.60 ($2,453,453.42) $22.15 $328,756.84 Unassigned 

Operating Revenue Checking Account 	 $2,943,272.29 
Peru Federal Account #161314228/#162310209 

$1,933,044.54 ($2,038,473.81) $834.30 $2,838,677.32 Unassigned 

Electric Revenue - Operating Reserve 	 $756,233.26 
Midland States Bank Acct #5405000523 

$0.00 $0.00 $108.89 $756,342.15 Unassigned 

Electric Reimbursement Checking Account 	 $222,809.92 
Heartland - Acct #6506429 

$0.00 $0.00 $19.42 $222,829.34 Unassigned 

Electric Reserve 	 $713,794.86 
DA Davidson Acct #18929160 

$250,000.00 ($307,655.41) $6,710.46 $662,849.91 Unassigned 

Electric Scrap Metal Account 	 $53,290.67 
Midland States Bank Acct #5405000523 

$0.00 $0.00 $7.67 $53,298.34 Restricted 

Guaranteed Light Deposit Checking Account 	 $486,461.91 
Peru Federal Account #161314228/#162310209 

$5,180.00 ($4,703.36) $137.89 $487,076.44 Restricted 

Operating Reserve Accounts 	 $530,280.02 
Heartland Bank - Acct #5840023088 

Electric Light Enterprise Fund Investments 

$13,892.62 ($450,000.00) $55.09 $94,227.73 Unassigned 

Certificate of Deposit Investments for Self Insurance Reserve 	 $4,328,897.17 $400,000.00 $0.00 $1,001.32 $4,729,898.49 Committed 
Certificate of Deposit Investments for Operating Reserve 	 $7,075,694.08 $350,000.00 ($250,000.00) $647.37 $7,176,341.45 Unassigned 
Certificate of Deposit Investments for Guaranteed Light Deposits $276,168.45 $0.00 $0.00 $196.94 $276,365.39 Restricted 
Total Electric Light Enterprise Fund 

$17,626,663.40 
Operating and Investment Accounts 

Electric Light Fund Enterprise Bond Accounts 
Series 1998/2010 Bond Reserve Fund Money Market Fund 	 $572,200.94 
Bank of New York - Acct #615961 

$0.00 $0.00 $97.33 $572,298.27 Restricted 

Series 1998 Bond Renewal & Replacement Fund Money Market Fund 	 $442,163.21 
Bank of New York - Acct #615962 

$0.00 $0.00 $75.02 $442,238.23 Restricted 

Series 2008 Revenue Refunding Bond Money Market Fund 	 $442,560.75 
Bank of New York - Acct #768325 

$49,105.57 $0.00 $75.02 $491,741.34 Restricted 

Series 2011B Debt Service Money Market Fund 	 $428,400.00 
Bank of New York - Acct #780844 

$0.00 ($428,400.00) $0.00 $0.00 Restricted 

2017 Bond Reserve 
Heartland Bank - Acct #5840023088 

$247,576.33 $40,883.33 $0.00 $25.72 $288,485.38 Restricted 

Total Electric Light Enterprise Fund Bond $1,794,763.22 
Accts 

Total Electric Light Enterprise Fund 
$19,421,426.62 

Operating, Investment and Bond Accts  

3 



Treasurer's Monthly Report January 31, 2019 

Fund Description 
Financial Institution - Account # 

Previous Period 
Balance 

Interest Receipts 	Disbursements 
Earned 

End of Period Balance 
Balance Use 

Definition 

Illinois Valley Regional Airport Enterprise Fund ($165,546.26) $6,094.94 	($4,404.88) 	$0.00 ($163,856.20) Unassigned 
Peru Federal Account #161314228/#162310209 
Farm Cash Rent Account - Hertz Management - Heartland $5,145.09 $0.00 	 $0.00 	$0.25 $5,145.34 Unassigned 

Total Illinois Valley Regional Airport (158,710.86) 
Enterprise Fund 

Landfill Enterprise Fund 
Operating Checking Account $427,129.77 $2,262.14 	 $0.00 	$121.07 $429,512.98 Unassigned 
Peru Federal Account #161314228/#162310209 
Landfill No. 3 Closure/Post Closure Money Market Account $131,147.87 $0.00 	 $0.00 	$13.62 $131,161.49 Restricted 
Heartland -Acct.5840023088 
Landfill Compost Site Reserve $117,116.36 $284.48 	 $0.00 	$0.00 $117,400.84 Restricted 
General Reserve Certificate of Deposit Investments $450,000.00 $0.00 	 $0.00 	$0.00 $450,000.00 Unassigned 
Post Closure Reserve Investments $118,324.50 $0.00 	 $0.00 	$0.00 $118,324.50 Restricted 

Total Landfill Enterprise Fund $1,246,399.81 

Waterworks & Sewerage System Enterprise Fund 
Area 4 & 6 Loan Payment Reserve 
Heartland - Acct #5840023088 $38,410.29 $19,190.00 	 $0.00 	$3.99 $57,604.28 Committed 
Series 2011B Bond Repayment Fund 
Heartland - Acct #5840023088 $11,903.62 $0.00 	 $0.00 	$1.24 $11,904.86 Restricted 
Guaranteed Water Deposit Checking Account 
Peru Federal Account #161314228/#162310209 $42,039.06 $700.00 	($640.00) 	$11.92 $42,110.98 Restricted 
Series 2009A Debt Service Fund 
Bank of New York Mellon Acct #778092 $373,701.72 $0.00 	($372,300.00) 	$63.24 $1,464.96 Restricted 
Series 2010 Debt Service Fund 
Bank of New York Mellon Acct #778107 $183,279.15 $18,522.83 	($182,587.50) 	$31.00 $19,245.48 Restricted 

Total Waterworks & Sewerage System $132,330.56 
Enterprise Fund 

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS $20,641,446.13 

FUND BALANCES 
Fund Type Amount GASB STATEMENT 54 FUND CLASSIFICATIONS Amount 

General Fund $11,053,046.41 Restricted Fund Balances 10,027,656.44 

Special Revenue Funds 1,870,903.69 Committed Fund Balances 6,345,472.71 

Trust Funds 81,823.05 Assigned Fund Balances 130,405.67 

Enterprise Funds 20,641,446.13 Unassigned Fund Balances 17,143,684.46 

Total Of All Fund Types $33,647,219.28 Total of All Fund Characteristics $33,647,219.28 

4 



Treasurers Monthly Report 	 January 31, 2019 

CONCENTRATION REPORT FOR APPROVED DEPOSITORIES AND INVESTMENTS 

Financial Institution/Account(s) Description Amount 

Market Value 
FDIC Insurance 	Of Pledged 

of Accounts 	Collateral* 
Deposit Risk 
Exposure 

The Illinois Funds $7,504,247 N/A 	 N/A 

Hometown National Bank Transaction Accounts $911,023 $250,000 	$1,447,422 
Hometown National Bank CD Investments $468,325 See Above 

Midland Bank Transaction Accounts $891,538 $250,000 	$1,252,129 
Midland Bank CD Investments $93,761 See Above 

Peru Federal Savings Transaction Accounts $4,556,225 $250,000 	$5,167,785 *** 721,969 
Peru Federal Savings CD Investments $1,583,529 

Heartland Transaction Accounts $2,017,052 $250,000 	$4,032,083 ** 

La Salle State Bank CD Investments $1,537,544 $250,000 	 $494,511 — 793,034 

Streator Onized Credit Union CD $251,192 $250,000 	 N/A 1,192 

Central Bank CD Investments $600,688 $250,000 	 $445,000 

First State Bank of Mendota CD $401,502 

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit Investments $10,348,979 $12,750,000 	 N/A 

Edward Jones - Money Markets $41,776 N/A 	 N/A 41,776 

Bank of New York Mellon Bond Accounts $1,526,988 N/A 	 N/A 1,526,988 

First Federal Savings Bank CD $250,000 

DA Davidson Cash $662,850 

Total Deposit Risk Exposure 3,084,960 
Total $33,647,219.28 

* Pledged collateral market values were updated on 4/30/2019. 
** as of 12/31/19 
"** as of 11/30/19 

5 



Treasurers Report 	 January 31, 2019 

FIREFIGHTER'S PENSION TRUST FUND 

Financial Institution 	 Investment Type 
Previous Period 	Receipts or 	Disbursements or 	End of Period 

Balance 	Inc In Market Value Loss of Market Value 	Balance 

Hometown National Bank - Trustee 
	

Multiple Investments 	$2,713,729.52 
	

$21,596.36 	 $ (11,626.70) 	$2,723,699.18 

POLICE PENSION TRUST FUND 

Financial Institution 	 Investment Type 
Previous Balance 	Receipts or 	Disbursements or 	End of Period 

Inc In Market Value Loss of Market Value 	Balance 

Hometown National Bank - Trustee 
	

Multiple Investments 	$11,216,838.57 
	

$110,198.34 	 $ (91,783.64) 	$11,235,253.27 

COMBINED OPERATING ACCOUNT STATUS 

Peru Federal Account #161314228/#162310209 

Fund Operating Checking Account Description 	 Operating Balance 

Electric Fund - Guaranteed Light Deposits 	 $487,076 
Electric Fund Operating Reserve 	 $2,838,677 
Garbage Fund 	 $22,020 
Illinois Valley Regional Airport 	 ($163,856) 
Landfill Operating 	 $429,513 
Motel Tax 	 $754,095 
Water & Sewer - Guaranteed Water Deposits 	 $42,111 

Negative Balance 

($163,856) 

Totals 

Guaranteed Deposit Adjustments 
Less Electric Fund - Guaranteed Light Deposits 
Less Water & Sewer - Guaranteed Water Deposits 
Net Funds Available in Combined Operating Account 

$4,409,636 

($487,076) 
($42,111) 

$3,880,449 

($163,856) 

6 



Fund 

Treasurer's Monthly Report 

FUND INVESTMENTS 

Financial Firm 	Investment TypE 	Account # Balance Rate 

January 31, 2019 

Balance Use 
Maturity Date 	Definition 

General Fund 
Operating Reserve LaSalle State Bank CD 80016183 $406,640.94 1.66% 5-Mar-20 Unassigned 
Operating Reserve First Source CD 33646CFH2 $250,000.00 1.90% 29-Apr-20 Unassigned 
Operating Reserve Capital One Bank USA CD 140420TX8 $250,000.00 2.30% 29-Jul-20 Unassigned 
Operating Reserve Capital One Bank CD 14042E4Z0 $250,000.00 2.30% 29-Jul-20 Unassigned 
Operating Reserve Citibank NA CD 17312QH77 $250,000.00 2.70% 29-Mar-21 Unassigned 
Operating Reserve Peru Federal Savings Bank CD 182000028 $150,819.24 1.64% 2-Apr-21 Unassigned 
Operating Reserve Peru Federal Savings Bank CD 183000005 $100,582.85 1.74% 2-Feb-21 Unassigned 
Operating Reserve Home Federal Bank CD 47310PBB0 $100,000.00 2.60% 15-Dec-21 Unassigned 
Operating Reserve Peru Federal Savings Bank CD 10181037064 $256,537.14 2.86% 7-Mar-22 Unassigned 
Operating Reserve BMW Bank of North America CD ZQ7294262 $200,000.00 1.75% 27-Mar-22 Unassigned 
Operating Reserve Peru Federal Savings Bank CD 10160000985 $358,848.23 2.70% 19-Apr-22 Unassigned 
Total General Fund $2,573,428.40 

Landfill Enterprise Fund 
Operating Reserve Patriot Bank NA CD 70337MCT3 $50,000.00 2.80% 26-Apr-21 Unassigned 
Landfill Fund - Reserve for Post Closure Hometown National Bank CD 76600601002 $118,324.50 1.20% 15-May-21 Restricted 
Landfill Fund - Compost Site Resv for Closure Peru Federal Savings Bank CD 10160001004 $117,400.84 2.90% 13-Jan-22 Restricted 
Operating Reserve LaSalle State Bank CD 80016406 $400,000.00 2.02% 6-Sep-22 Restricted 
Total Landfill Enterprise Fund $685,725.34 

Electric Light Enterprise Fund 
Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Synchrony Bank CD 87165HHN3 $250,000.00 1.85% 17-Apr-20 Unassigned 
Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Marlin Business Bank CD 57116AJP4 $250,000.00 1.60% 22-Apr-20 Unassigned 
Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Discover Bank CD 254672MH8 $200,000.00 1.85% 22-Apr-20 Unassigned 
Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Everbank CD 29976DWW6 $50,000.00 1.50% 29-Apr-20 Unassigned 
Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Bridgewater Bank CD 108622EM9 $250,000.00 1.45% 15-May-20 Unassigned 
Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Live Oak Bank Company CD 538036DQ4 $100,000.00 2.65% 15-Jun-20 Unassigned 
Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Investors Community Bank CD 46147UQT0 $250,000.00 1.75% 22-Jun-20 Unassigned 
Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve American Express Bank CD 02587CED8 $200,000.00 2.35% 29-Jul-20 Unassigned 
Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve CIT Bank CD 17284DEF5 $50,000.00 2.30% 30-Jul-20 Unassigned 
Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Guaranty State Bank CD 401228AV3 $250,000.00 2.30% 30-Jul-20 Unassigned 
Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Institutional Savings CD 45780PAL9 $250,000.00 1.65% 30-Jul-20 Unassigned 
Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve First Business CD 31938QN67 $250,000.00 2.00% 31-Jul-20 Unassigned 
Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Discover Bank CD 254673SF4 $50,000.00 2.75% 3-Aug-20 Unassigned 
Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Wex Bank CD 92937CHU5 $250,000.00 2.70% 3-Aug-20 Unassigned 
Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Ally Bank CD 02006L4X8 $49,000.00 1.90% 17-Aug-20 Unassigned 
Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Haven Savings Bank CD 41939HBB7 $50,000.00 1.60% 18-Aug-20 Unassigned 
Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Barclays Bank CD 06740KJQ1 $250,000.00 2.20% 23-Sep-20 Unassigned 
Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve American Express Centurion CD 02587DF86 $50,000.00 2.25% 4-Nov-20 Unassigned 



Fund 

Treasurer's Monthly Report 

FUND INVESTMENTS 

Financial Firm 	Investment TypE 	Account # Balance Rate 

January 31, 2019 

Balance Use 
Maturity Date 	Definition 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Veritex Comnty Bank CD 923450BX7 $50,000.00 1.65% 4-Nov-20 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Goldman Sachs Bank CD 38148JZ95 $50,000.00 2.25% 12-Nov-20 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve First Internet CD 32056GDD9 $200,000.00 3.00% 28-Dec-20 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Eaglebank CD 27002YDV56 $250,000.00 2.85% 20-Jan-21 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Bank of Baroda CD 06063HKT9 $50,000.00 1.65% 29-Jan-21 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve United Banker CD 909557HM5 $100,000.00 2.80% 29-Jan-21 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Merrick Bank CD 59013J2Q1 $100,000.00 2.85% 22-Feb-21 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Guaranty B&T CD 400820CN4 $100,000.00 2.80% 1-Mar-21 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Patriot Bank NA CD 70337MCT3 $200,000.00 2.80% 26-Apr-21 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve First Service Bank CD 33640VCH9 $250,000.00 2.80% 14-May-21 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Streator Onized Credit Union (51 CD 70344 $125,596.09 2.89% 19-Jul-21 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Sallie Mae Bank CD 795450U60 $250,000.00 3.00% 9-Aug-21 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Hanmi Bank CD 410493DL1 $250,000.00 2.95% 17-Aug-21 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Southwest National Bank CD 845182BQ6 $100,000.00 2.90% 24-Aug-21 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Connenity Capital Bank CD 20033ASN7 $250,000.00 1.70% 12-Oct-21 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Central Bank CD 106116 $100,243.40 3.20% 6-Mar-22 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Raymond James Bank CD 75472RASO $250,000.00 1.70% 30-Jun-22 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve BMW Bank of North America CD 0580AUL6 $50,000.00 1.70% 29-Jul-22 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve First Federal Savings Bank CD 4020017127 $250,000.00 2.30% 16-Aug-22 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Hometown National Bank CD 76600601003 $350,000.00 1.85% 30-Sep-22 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve First State Bank Mendota CD 1023246143 $401,501.96 1.92% 17-Nov-22 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Morgan Stanley Bank CD 61760A4U0 $250,000.00 1.85% 22-Nov-17 Unassigned 

Electric Light Fund - Operating Reserve Wells Fargo Bank CD 949763S64 $150,000.00 1.90% 30-Jan-23 Unassigned 

Total Operating Reserve $7,176,341.45 

Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve LaSalle State Bank CD 80014765 $111,465.04 1.47% 23-Mar-21 Committed 

Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve LaSalle State Bank CD 80014681 $109,719.20 1.60% 2-Feb-20 Committed 

Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve LaSalle State Bank CD 80014682 $109,719.20 1.60% 2-Feb-20 Committed 

Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve Nationwide Bank CD 63861NAK1 $249,000.00 1.85% 28-Feb-20 Committed 

Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve American Express Centurion CD 02587DR59 $200,000.00 1.80% 4-May-20 Committed 

Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve Ally Bank CD 02006L2K8 $50,000.00 1.80% 4-May-20 Committed 

Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve First Natl Bk OH CD 323243AR6 $100,000.00 2.90% 28-Sep-20 Committed 

Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve Third Fed Sav&Ln Cleveland CD 88413QBS6 $250,000.00 1.95% 27-Oct-20 Committed 

Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve First Bank of Highland CD 319141JE8 $250,000.00 1.90% 2-Nov-20 Committed 

Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve Goldman Sachs Bank CD 38148PTZ0 $150,000.00 2.10% 7-Dec-20 Committed 

Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve Independent Bank CD 45383U1VV5 $250,000.00 2.90% 22-Feb-21 Committed 

Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve UBS Bank USD CD 90348JCP3 $250,000.00 2.85% 1-Jun-21 Committed 

Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve Live Oak Banking Co CD 538036DZ4 $150,000.00 3.10% 10-Jun-21 Committed 

Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve Somerset Trust Co CD 835104BW9 $150,000.00 1.65% 30-Jul-21 Committed 

Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve LaSalle State Bank CD 80016405 $400,000.00 2.02% 6-Sep-21 Committed 



Fund 

Treasurer's Monthly Report 

FUND INVESTMENTS 

Financial Firm 	Investment TypE 	Account # Balance Rate 

January 31, 2019 

Balance Use 
Maturity Date 	Definition 

Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve Ally Bank UT CD 02007GGF4 $150,000.00 3.25% 29-Nov-21 Committed 
Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve Merrick Bank CD 59013J5D7 $150,000.00 3.20% 29-Nov-21 Committed 
Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve Enerbank USA CD 29278TELO $50,000.00 3.15% 30-Nov-21 Committed 
Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve Medallion Bank Utah CD 58404DCY5 $250,000.00 3.20% 13-Dec-21 Committed 
Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve Peru Federal Savings Bank CD 10160000993 $188,862.20 2.90% 13-Jan-22 Committed 
Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve Central Bank CD 106439 $300,000.00 2.95% 13-Jan-22 Committed 
Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve Central Bank CD 106151 $200,444.70 2.95% 19-May-22 Committed 
Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve Peru Federal Savings Bank CD 10160001020 $259,708.77 2.50% 26-Jun-22 Committed 
Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve Morgan Stanley Bank CD 6169OUJU5 $150,979.38 2.10% 8-Aug-22 Committed 
Electric Light Fund - Self Insurance Reserve Wells Fargo Bank CD 949495AT2 $250,000.00 1.90% 30-Jan-23 Committed 
Total Self Insurance Reserve $4,729,898.49 

Electric Light Fund - Guaranteed Deposits Peru Federal Savings Bank CD 181000008 $150,769.31 1.54% 2-Oct-20 Restricted 
Electric Light Fund - Guaranteed Deposits Streator Onized Credit Union (51 CD 70344 $125,596.08 2.89% 19-Jul-21 Restricted 
Total Guaranteed Light Deposits $276,365.39 

Total Electric Light Fund Enterprise $12,182,605.33 

Peru Municipal Pool Account 
Municipal Pool Account Midland States Bank CD 8484945406 $93,760.66 1.80% 29-Oct-20 Assigned 

Total Peru Municipal Pool Account $93,760.66 

Total Fund Investments $15,535,519.73 

Certificate of Deposit Investments by Depos Amount 
Purchased Negotiable Certificates of Deposit $10,348,979.38 
Central Bank Certificates of Deposit $600,688.10 
Midland State Certificates of Deposit $93,760.66 
LaSalle State Bank Certificates of Deposit $1,537,544.38 
Hometown Bank Certificates of Deposit $468,324.50 
Peru Federal Savings Bank $1,583,528.58 
First State Bank of Mendota $401,501.96 
Steator Onized Credit Union $251,192.17 
First Federal Savings Bank $250,000.00 

Total Certificate of Deposit Investments $15,535,519.73 



CITY CLERK'S REPORT OF CASH RECEIVED 
JANUARY 2020 

GENERAL FUND 
Road & Bridge property tax 
Municipal sales tax -October sales 
HRT-Parkside -October sales 
HRT-Infrastructure -October sales 
Use tax 
Telecommuncations tax 
Personal Property Replacement tax 
State Income tax 
Video gaming municipal share 
Pull tab license fees 
Motel tax 
Health insurance reimbursements 
Miscellaneous licenses 
Dog licenses 
Liquor license 
Contractor licenses 
Police fines/copies/misc 
Police salary reimbursement 
Circuit Court fines 
Adjudication fines 
Police false alarms 
Fire Department service calls 
Dimmick-Peru Fire District annual 
AT&T franchise-monthly 
Cable franchise-quarterly 
Electric franchise-monthly 
Building permits 
Inspection fees 
Filing fee 
Accident damage reimbursement 
Telecomm tower rent 
Key Outdoor-sign rent 
Vacant property registrations 
Cemetery lots 
Burial permits 
Cemetery niche 
Fire Department donation 
IVAR Donations 
CSO donation to celebration fund 
IVRD accounting 
Brendan Sheedy-unused per diem 
Code Red reimbursements 
Sidlyd Partners-CVS property purchase 
State of IL-traffic grant 

Total General Fund 

546,893.59 
176,561.06 
176,561.07 

33,083.01 
14,577.93 
32,949.07 
94,213.42 
22,177.23 

23,984.32 
5,204.27 

575.00 
200.00 
315.00 
500.00 

1,160.00 
1,274.47 
3,198.01 
2,045.00 

50.00 

755.55 

97,916.00 
766.00 
200.00 
450.00 

3,801.09 
550.00 

1,200.00 
2,400.00 

500.00 

39.00 
100.00 

1,000.00 
121.99 

5,246.00 
538,102.00 

$ 1,788,670.08  



CITY CLERK'S REPORT OF CASH RECEIVED 
JANUARY 2020 

POLICE DRUG ENFORCE/IMPOUND/EQUIP FUND 
Drug fine/forfeiture income 1,581.00 
Impound fees 2,750.00 
Other revenue 2,296.73 

Total Police Drug/Impound Fund 6,627.73 

INSURANCE FUND 
General Fund-flexpay PR deductions 3,521.50 
Utility Fund-HRA reimbursements 1,272.92 
General Fund-HRA reimbursements 5,792.95 
Utility Fund-Nov/Dec funding 
General Fund-Nov/Dec funding 

$ 	10,587.37 

GARBAGE FUND 
Accounts receivable-stickers 
Yard bag stickers 
Utility receipts 51,240.63 

Total Garbage Fund $ 	51,240.63 

MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND 
Motor Fuel Tax -Dec Allotment 45,191.78 

Total Motor Fuel Tax Fund 45,191.78 

RECREATION FUND 
Program fees 
Non-resident fees 
Arts & Crafts 

Total Recreation Fund 

TIF DISTRICT #1 FUND 
Property taxes-3rd installment 

Total TIF #1 Fund 

PERU INDUSTRIAL PARK TIF 
Property taxes-3rd installment 

Total Peru Industrial Park TIF 

NORTH PERU TIF 
Property taxes-3rd installment 

Total North Peru TIF 



CITY CLERK'S REPORT OF CASH RECEIVED 
JANUARY 2020 

UTILITY FUND 
Utility receipts 1,909,917.06 
Reconnect fees 700.00 
NSF fees 125.00 
Temporary service 
Fiber optic rent 3,629.98 
Health insurance 1,339.17 
Sale of equipment 
Water meter/supplies 
Sale of loads of water 
Wastewater analysis 2,676.25 
Accident damages - 
Labor & supplies 
Comcast-annual pole rent 13,532.00 
Credit card service charges 1,125.08 

$ 1,933,044.54 
Total Electric Fund 

GUARANTEED DEPOSIT FUND 
Electric utility deposits 5,180.00 
Water utility deposits 700.00 

$ 	5,880.00 
Total Guaranteed Deposit Fund 

LANDFILL FUND 
Utility receipts 2,190.14 
Chipper accounts receivable 

Total Landfill Fund $ 	2,190.14 

AIRPORT OPERATIONS 
Accounts receivable-hangar rentals 5,510.00 
Marquis-land lease 385.69 
Hangar rent 
Midwest Avtech-flowage fees 199.25 

Total Airport Operations Fund $ 	6,094.94 

TOTAL ALL FUNDS 

  

3,849,527.21 

     

     

     

 

David Bartley, ity Clerk 

 

3 











































 
 
 

 

 
184 Shuman Blvd, Suite 305 Naperville, IL 60563 · (630) 620-0200 · Fax (239) 481-0634 · www.foster-foster.com 

 
 
February 12, 2020 
 
 
Mr. Justin Miller, Finance Officer 
City of Peru 
1901 4th Street 
Peru, IL  61354 
 
 
Re:   Actuarial Services for the City of Peru Fire and Police Pension Funds 
 
 
Dear Justin:  
 
As requested, we are providing a Letter of Engagement for actuarial services for the City of Peru. These 
services will include the following: 
 

 Preparation of the City’s GASB Statement No. 67 financial disclosure information for the April 30, 
2020 fiscal year-end. This information will be completed based on a liability roll-forward from the 
beginning of the fiscal year. The annual fee for this service is $1,630 per plan. 

 Preparation of the City’s GASB Statement No. 68 financial disclosure information for the April 30, 
2020 fiscal year-end. This information will be completed based on a liability roll-forward from the 
beginning of the fiscal year. The fee for this service is $1,630 per plan. 

 
The fees for these services are subject to a 3% annual increase in future years. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or if you would like to discuss. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Jason L. Franken, FSA, EA, MAAA 
February 12, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Accepted and Approved by the City of Peru 
 
 
 

 ______________________________________  
 Authorized Signature 
 
 ______________________________________  
 Printed Name and Title 
 
 ______________________________________  
 Date 



 
 
 

 

 
184 Shuman Blvd, Suite 305 Naperville, IL 60563 · (630) 620-0200 · Fax (239) 481-0634 · www.foster-foster.com 

 

 
 
February 12, 2020 
 
 
Mr. Justin Miller, Finance Officer 
City of Peru 
1901 4th Street 
Peru, IL  61354 
 
 
Re:   GASB 75 Actuarial Services for the City of Peru 
 
 
Dear Justin:  
 
As requested, we are providing a Letter of Engagement for 2020 actuarial services for the City of Peru. 
These services will include the following: 
 

 Performance of an actuarial valuation and report for the City’s OPEB plan. The valuation shall be 
conducted using the Alternative Measurement Method as set forth under GASB Statement No. 75. 
Since a full valuation is not required in 2020, an interim update will be completed at fee of $1,500. 

  
The fees for these services are subject to a 3% annual increase in future years. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or if you would like to discuss. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Jason L. Franken, FSA, EA, MAAA 
February 12, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Accepted and Approved by the City of Peru 
 
 
 

 ______________________________________  
 Authorized Signature 
 
 ______________________________________  
 Printed Name and Title 
 
 ______________________________________  
 Date 



Resolution # __________________ 
 

RESOLUTION TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT 
FOR ADMINISTRATION AND COORDINATION SERVICES 
FOR AN ILLINOIS EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY  

PRE-DISASTER MITIGATION GRANT (PDM) 
ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF PERU 

 
This AGREEMENT, made and entered into as of this ________ of _________________, 2020 by and 
between the CITY OF PERU, Illinois (hereinafter referred to as the "CITY") and the North Central 
Illinois Council of Governments, 613 W. Marquette Street, Peru, Illinois (hereinafter referred to as the 
"COUNCIL"). 
 

:WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY OF PERU is desirous of entering into an Agreement with the Illinois Emergency 
Management Agency to provide for financial aid to the CITY under the Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) 
grant to install a new generator at the watewaster treatment plant. 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY desires to engage the COUNCIL to render certain technical advice, management, 
and assistance in the administration of the PDM grant program. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows: 
 
GRANT ADMINISTRATION  
 
THE COUNCIL AGREES to perform the following duties for the CITY in consultation with the City and 
City Council and their designated representatives: 
 
1. Fulfillment of Grant Agreement Conditions/Requirements 

The COUNCIL will administer the grant in accordance with the provisions of the Illinois 
Emergency Management Agency (IEMA) agreement between IEMA and the CITY to assure the 
CITY’S compliance responsibilities with respect to said grant.  The COUNCIL will also undertake 
to prepare and submit all materials required by IEMA to satisfy any conditions of the grant 
agreement to secure the grant agreement for the CITY.  All other stipulations of this 
AGREENENT shall be void if conditions stipulated in the CITY’S grant agreement with IEMA 
are not satisfactorily fulfilled. 

 
2. Fund Management 

The COUNCIL shall act as coordinator for financial management services, making or causing to 
be made in the proper manner IEMA vouchers to draw down grant funds and see to the timely  
payment of those entitled to payment, subject to CITY authorization.  The CITY agrees to permit 
the COUNCIL to establish a separate interest bearing checking account (or accounts, as necessary) 
for purpose of this program and to inspect and authorize all program payments. 

 
3. Reporting 

The COUNCIL will establish a grant management filing system and shall prepare and submit all 
necessary reports, forms, schedules, accounts, and all other documents required or requested by 
IEMA, or other state or federal agency or independent firms performing any audit or monitoring 
activity for program compliance purposes.  Copies of all program documents will be maintained at 
a place designated by the CITY for a period of three (3) years after program completion.  The 
COUNCIL will render reports, either oral or written, at the request of the CITY concerning the 



COUNCIL’S activities and program progress to either the CITY Council or other groups. 
 
4. Day-to-Day Coordination 
 

The COUNCIL shall at all times during this AGREEMENT provide the CITY with day-to-day 
coordination of program activities and shall, as often as required, monitor, inspect, and examine 
the project to insure that all activities are being performed in accordance with applicable federal, 
state, and local requirements. 

 
COST OF SERVICES 
 
Administration fee - $ 10,000 with payment to be made when the generator is completed.   
 
OTHER PROVISIONS 
 
1. Termination:  This AGREEMENT shall be terminated if the COUNCIL ceases to exist as an 

organization under Illinois law and other related provisions.  In the event that this happens, this 
termination will be effective as of the COUNCIL’S dissolution with the CITY being duly notified 
in writing.  This AGREEMENT may also be terminated if the CITY and the COUNCIL mutually 
agree in writing, that the objectives of this AGREEMENT cannot be met.  The CITY and the 
COUNCIL will mutually determine, in writing, any payments which may be due in the event of 
termination under this AGREEMENT. 

 
2. COUNCIL Not Liable:  The CITY shall hold the COUNCIL harmless from any and all claims, 

demands, and actions based upon or arising out of any services performed by the COUNCIL, its  
officers, its employees, their associates, and their employers under this AGREEMENT. 

 
3.  This AGREEMENT constitutes the entire AGREEMENT between the parties hereto, and no 

changes in or additions to said AGREEMENT shall be valid unless in writing signed by the parties 
hereto. 

 
4.   This COUNCIL shall perform the services hereunder as an independent contractor and shall not be 

considered an employee or agent of the CITY for any purpose. 
 
5. This AGREEMNT is personal between the CITY and the COUNCIL, and any assignment of this 

AGREEMENT or of any of the funds due is expressly prohibited. 
 
6. This AGREEMENT shall be interpreted and construed according to the laws of the State of 

Illinois. 
 
7. The CITY AGREES to pledge its support and assistance to the COUNCIL on an as needed basis 

in the coordination of application activities on behalf of the CITY. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
PERU that this AGREEMENT be adopted by the City of Peru and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby 
authorized to execute said AGREEMENT. 
 
Passed and adopted this ________day of _______________, 2020. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and the COUNCIL have executed this AGREEMENT as of the date 
first above written. 
 
FOR THE CITY:      FOR THE COUNCIL: 
 
___________________________________   ___________________________________ 
Scott Harl, Mayor      Matt Fritz,  President 
 
ATTEST:       ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________   ___________________________________ 
David Bartley, City Clerk     Jennifer Scheri, Secretary 
             
(SEAL)       (SEAL) 





























































1 
 

 
 ORDINANCE NO. _______ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF  
A    TEMPORARY    CONSTRUCTION     EASEMENT 
FROM BRIAN A. BURCH AND DEBORAH R. BURCH 

(1319 4th Street, Peru, IL) 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Peru, an Illinois home rule municipal corporation (hereinafter 

“City”), proposes infrastructure improvements between Plum Street and Rock Street, north of 4th 

Street, as part of the City’s Area 1 Phase 5 Sewer Separation Project; and 

WHEREAS, there is a need for a temporary construction easement from Brian A. Burch 

and Deborah R. Burch to make said infrastructure improvements, and the Burch’s have agreed to 

provide the requested easement (hereinafter “Easement”); and 

 WHEREAS, the acquisition of the Easement is a matter pertaining to the government and 

affairs of the City, is a proper public purpose, and is in the best interests of the health, safety, and 

welfare of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF PERU, LASALLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 SECTION 1:   The Mayor, for and on behalf of the City, is hereby authorized and directed 

to execute and accept, and the City Clerk, for and on behalf of the City, is hereby authorized and 

directed to attest, the Temporary Construction Easement from Brian A. Burch and Deborah R. 

Burch, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

 SECTION 2: This Ordinance shall be effective immediately from and after its passage and 

approval. 



2 
 

PRESENTED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of 

the City of Peru, Illinois, by an aye and nay roll call vote, with ____ voting aye, ____ voting nay, 

____ absent, and Mayor Harl ____ voting _____, which meeting was held on the 17th day of 

February, 2020.      

APPROVED:  February 17, 2020 
  
 

________________________________ 
             Scott J. Harl, Mayor 

 
(CORPORATE SEAL)  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
              David R. Bartley 
  City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
Aldermen  Aye Nay Absent 
Ferrari 
Waldorf 
Lukosus 
Radtke 
Sapienza 
Payton 
Ballard 
Buffo 
 

 
























































	Agenda 021720
	MONDAY, FEBRUARY 17, 2020
	MINUTES
	COMMITTEE REPORTS      ALDERMEN
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	ADJOURNMENT


	Regular Meeting Minutes 020520
	All joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America.
	UPUBLIC COMMENT
	Peru Attorney Julie Ajster addressed the council to discuss the motion on the agenda regarding the engagement letter with Klein Thorpe and Jenkins (KTJ) for special counsel and legal services relating to FOIA. Ms. Ajster stated it is her opinion the m...
	Chief Bernabei addressed the council stating he wanted to respond to a few of those comments even though he doesn’t normally respond to Ms. Ajster due to their adversary relationship which exists since he testified against her in the IL Supreme Court....
	Chief Bernabei stated she then asked the clerks office for invoices and was pointed to the website under proposed police station project.
	Chief Bernabei stated that on January 20, 2020, Ms. Ajster sent a FOIA request to the clerk’s office for resumes, applications, etc. for any individual who applied for the position of Director of Parks, Recreation and Special Events. Chief Bernabei st...
	Chief Bernabei stated that on January 20, 2020, Ms. Ajster asked for resumes, applications, letters, documents for part-time police officer and any emails between the mayor and chief of police. Chief Bernabei stated we did have an application from a p...
	Chief Bernabei stated on January 22, 2020 Ms. Ajster asked for the police collective bargaining agreement and had no problem releasing, along with the police policy manual and handbook. Chief Bernabei stated there is an exemption under IL law that sta...
	Chief Bernabei stated that on January 23, 2020 Ms. Ajster asked for a list of Board of Fire and Police Commissioners along with policies and procedures and stated yes, we should have that on the website and we did not, and it was immediately put on. C...
	Chief Bernabei stated that on January 24, 2020 Ms. Ajster asked for all police employees, that’s thirty-five employees including crossing guards, patrol officers, administrative assistants, etc. Chief Bernabei stated Ms. Ajster asked for every single ...
	Chief Bernabei stated that on January 29, 2020 Ms. Ajster requested entire employment file including all disciplinary records of a former peru police officer that was denied on February 4, 2020 because he indicated she made the very request for the sa...
	Chief Bernabei stated that along with CBA a list of all officers suspended in last two years with a date, length of suspension and reason. Chief Bernabei stated the records are a matter of public record to an extent, however, under the IL courts and I...
	Chief Bernabei stated on January 29, 2020 Ms. Ajster sent a FOIA request based on the fact someone told her he has all kinds of surveillance equipment at his home. Chief Bernabei stated that FOIA was answered by Administrative Assistant and FOIA Offic...
	Chief Bernabei reiterated that some of the requests involve people who are trying for jobs in the City of Peru and their information is not subject, according to our attorney not subject to public consumption.
	Chief Bernabei also stated that asking for disciplinary records against what he would argue the finest members of any law enforcement agency anywhere.
	Ms. Ajster (unadudible). Chief Bernabei stated “I am talking”. Ms. Ajster could be heard asking Chief Bernabei why you keep suspending them for everything. Chief Bernabei stated it was none of her business. Ms. Ajster stated it is because he is a tyra...
	Chief Bernabei stated that in any event, the FOIA officers will handle and continue to handle routine FOIA matters that do not expose them or the city to unnecessary risk or liability of releasing information that they should not release. Chief Bernab...
	Chief Bernabei stated that yes, the engagement letter is on the agenda and yes, him and City Engineer Eric Carls engaged KTJ in December of last year regarding the information Ms. Ajster requested regarding the proposed police department that was clea...
	UPRESENTATION
	Mayor Harl presented introduced Henry and Deb Hackman to the council. Mr. Hackman, a State Farm agent with a downtown office, is retiring after 40 years in business. Mayor Scott Harl recognized Hackman as a “Peru Good Neighbor” and wished him a happy ...
	UREPORT OF CITY ATTORNEY/ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS
	Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented the minutes of Planning/Zoning Commission hearing held on January 29, 2020 concerning the petition of MVAH Holding LLC for property located east of North Peoria Street and North of Midtown Road, Peru, IL. ...
	Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented the minutes of Planning/Zoning Commission hearing held on January 29, 2020 concerning the petition of Robert Grivetti concerning property located at 2702 May Road, Peru, IL. Alderman Ballard made a motion ...
	Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented a proposed ordinance entitled:
	ORDINANCE NO. 6454
	AN ORDINANCE GRANTING SPECIAL USES AS SOUGHT BY THE PETITION OF ROBERT GRIVETTI FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2702 MAY ROAD, PERU, IL
	Alderman Buffo made a motion the ordinance be adopted as written and read. Alderman Ballard seconded the motion. Finance Officer Justin Miller stated the ordinance combines all separate policies (credit card policy, travel expenses, bidding policy and...
	City Clerk Dave Bartley presented a proposed resolution entitled:
	RESOLUTION NO. 2020-01
	RESOLUTION FOR MAINTENANCE OF STREETS AND HIGHWAYS BY MUNICIPALITY UNDER THE ILLINOIS HIGHWAY CODE (Supplemental Resolution-for expenditure of MFT funds for the N. Peoria Street roadway improvements)
	Alderman Waldorf made a motion the resolution be adopted as written and read. Alderman Sapienza seconded the motion. City Engineer Eric Carls noted the $1.5 million in MFT funds total. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Wal...
	UPROCLAMATIONS
	UUNFINISHED BUSINESS
	UNEW BUSINESS
	Alderman Waldorf made a motion to approve an Engagement Letter with Klein, Thorpe and Jenkins, LTD. For Special Counsel Legal Services relating to FOIA matters. Alderman Sapienza seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Alderm...

	Treasurer's Report - January 2020
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11

	City Clerk's Report-January 2020
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3

	Police Dept Annual Report 2019
	Disbursements 021920
	02-12-20, Police and Fire Engagement Letter (City of Peru)
	02-12-20, GASB 75 Engagement Letter (City of Peru)
	Resolution EWWTP
	Minutes GC Housing Crane Construction
	Minutes.GC Housing Development.Crane Construction-1
	Power Point Presentation.Exh A-2
	Minutes.GC Housing Dvlp.Crane-Exhibit B-3

	Ordinance Burch
	Ord. Accept. Temp Const. Easement - Burch
	Temporary Construction Easement.Burch

	Ordinance.Utility Easement.Ryan Margis
	Ordinance.Utility Easement.Koehler
	Ordinance.Lance Siebert
	Ordinance.Easement.Stachowiak
	Voting Communication

